SOUTH GIPPSLAND SHIRE COUNCIL

Special Meeting of Council

Council receives, considers and determines S223 submissions to the Proposed Annual Budget 2019/20 including Annual Initiatives, Revised Council Plan 2017-2021 and the Proposed Rating Strategy 2019-2022, pursuant to section 223 of the Local Government Act 1989

MINUTES

29 May 2019 RSL, Leongatha Commenced at 11.00am





Come for the beauty, Stay for the lifestyle



MISSION

South Gippsland Shire will be a place where our quality of life and sense of community are balanced by sustainable and sensitive development, population and economic growth.

Privacy

Council is required to keep minutes of each Council meeting. The minutes contain details of proceedings which may include personal information about community members disclosed as part of presentations, submissions and questions. The minutes of Council meetings are a public record and can be inspected by members of the public.

Council undertakes audio recordings of Council Meetings as a contribution to good governance and accuracy of minutes. An audio recording of this meeting is being made for the purpose of verifying the accuracy of minutes of the meeting. In some circumstances the recording may be disclosed, such as where Council is compelled to do so by court order, warrant, and subpoena or by any other law such as the Freedom of Information Act 1982. It should be noted that other people present at the meeting may be recording the meeting and Council has limited power to regulate this. Council has developed a policy to regulate recordings, "Sound Recording of Council Meetings".

A copy of this policy is located on Council's website www.southgippsland.vic.gov.au.

PRESENT

Cr Don Hill, Mayor COUNCILLORS: Cr Alyson Skinner, Deputy Mayor Cr Ray Argento Cr Andrew McEwen Cr Aaron Brown Cr Steve Finlay Cr Frank Hirst COUNCILLORS Cr Rosemary Cousin NOT PRESENT: Bryan Sword, Acting (on behalf of) Chief Executive Officer **OFFICERS**: Faith Page, Director Corporate and Community Services Anthony Seabrook, Director Infrastructure Services Rick Rutjens, Manager Executive Support and Community Information June Ernst, Coordinator Council Business Jodi Cumming, Corporate and Council Business Officer Natasha Berry, Corporate and Council Business Officer

SOUTH GIPPSLAND SHIRE COUNCIL

Special Meeting of Council Wednesday 29 May 2019 RSL, Leongatha commenced at 11.00am

TABLE OF CONTENTS

WELCOME OPENING PRAYER ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	5
1.4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS	
	5
1.5 REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ARSENCE	
1.5. TEQUESTS FOR ELAVE OF ABSENCE	6
1.6. APOLOGIES	6
1.7. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR COUNCILLORS	7
1.8. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR STAFF	8
2. COUNCIL REPORTS	.9
2.1. PROPOSED 2019-2022 RATING STRATEGY, PROPOSED 2019/20	
ANNUAL BUDGET AND REVISED 2017-2021 COUNCIL PLAN - S223	
SUBMISSIONS	9
3. MEETING CLOSED	:2

Bryan Sword

Acting Chief Executive Officer

1. PRELIMINARY MATTERS

This Council Meeting is being streamed live, recorded and published in accordance with Council's *Live Streaming in Council Meetings Policy*.

To those present in the gallery today, by attending a public meeting of the Council you are consenting to your image, voice and comments being recorded and published.

Anyone who is invited to read out a question or a presentation will be recorded and their voice, image and comments will form part of the live stream and recording.

The Chair and/or the CEO have the discretion and authority at any time to direct the termination or interruption of live streaming. Such direction will only be given in exceptional circumstances where deemed relevant. Circumstances may include instances where the content of debate is considered misleading, defamatory or potentially inappropriate to be published.

Attendees are advised that they may be subject to legal action if their actions results in inappropriate and/or unacceptable behaviour and/or comments.

Today's Meeting is being streamed live as well as recorded and published on Council's website.

Thank you

1.2. WELCOME

Please ensure Mobile phones remain 'off' during the Council Meeting.

1.3. OPENING PRAYER

We pray to God to guide us so that the thoughts we have and the decisions made this day, are in the best interests of the people of the South Gippsland Shire.

Amen

1.4. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF TRADITIONAL CUSTODIANS

The South Gippsland Shire Council respectfully acknowledges the Traditional Custodians of this Land, Elders past and present, their Spirits and Ancestors.

1.5. REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Councillor McEwen requested a leave of absence for the 29 May 2019 Ordinary Meeting of Council.

MOVED: Cr McEwen SECONDED: Cr Hirst

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

1.6. APOLOGIES

Councillor Cousin with leave granted at 8 May 2019 Special (Emergency) Meeting of Council.

1.7. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR COUNCILLORS

Any interest that a Councillor or staff member has deemed to be significant and has disclosed as either a direct or an indirect interest is now considered to be a conflict of interest. Conflict of interest legislation is in sections 77A, 77B, 78, 78A-D and 79 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act). This legislation can be obtained by contacting the Council's Corporate & Community Services Directorate (Council Business) or by accessing the Victorian Legislation and Parliamentary Documents website at www.legislation.vic.gov.au.

An interest may be by close association, financial, conflicting duties or receipt of gifts. If a Councillor or staff member discloses any interest in an item discussed at any Council Meeting (whether they attend or not) they must:

- Complete a disclosure of interest form prior to the Meeting (forms are available from Council Business Department at South Gippsland Shire Council).
- Advise the Chair of the interest immediately before the particular item is considered (if attending the Meeting).
- Leave the Council Chamber or Meeting room while the item is being discussed and during any vote taken (if attending the Meeting).

The Councillor or staff member will be advised to return to the Council Chamber or Meeting room immediately after the item has been considered and the vote is complete.

Councillors should check the Minutes of the Council Meeting to ensure their disclosure is recorded accurately. Councillors are not required to disclose conflict of interest in relation to matters only considered at Meetings they do not attend. Detailed information is available in *Conflict of Interest – A Guide for Councillors – October 2012.*

Nil

Note: Later in the Council Meeting at Recommendation Item 5I (SUBMISSION 9 (AB09) – Ross Garner), the Mayor paused this Recommendation Item as Councillor McEwen declared an indirect conflict of interest by close association and conflict of duty as he is a member of the Meenyian Art Gallery.

Note: Later in the Council Meeting at Recommendation Item 6C (SUBMISSION 3 (CP03) – John McCombe), the Mayor paused this Recommendation Item as Councillor Finlay declared an indirect conflict of interest by conflict of duty as he signed the petition supporting this submission.

1.8. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR STAFF

Sections 80B and 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 require members of Council staff who have delegated functions and/or provide advice to Council or a Special Committee to disclose conflicts of interest. If Council staff have written, provided information/advice or approved a Council Report and have a conflict of interest, it is the responsibility of that staff member to disclose the interest.

Guidance to identifying and disclosing a conflict of interest is contained in the Victorian State Government, Department of Transport, Planning and Local Infrastructure – *Conflict of Interest – A Guide for Council Staff – October 2011*.

Nil

2. COUNCIL REPORTS

2.1. PROPOSED 2019-2022 RATING STRATEGY, PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET AND REVISED 2017-2021 COUNCIL PLAN - S223 SUBMISSIONS

Corporate and Community Services Directorate

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

At the Special Meeting of Council 20 March 2019, Council endorsed the Proposed 2019-2022 Rating Strategy (Proposed Rating Strategy), the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget (Proposed Budget) and the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021 (Revised Council Plan). Council resolved to invite formal submissions from the public under s.223 of the Local Government Act 1989 (Act) on these three strategic documents.

Council received seven written submissions for the Proposed Rating Strategy, 19 written submissions for the Proposed Budget, and six written submissions for the Revised Council Plan by the closing date of 26 April 2019. Two petitions were received after the closing date in support of two submissions received within the timeframe. The two submitters have asked for Council to consider the petitions as part of their submissions. It is proposed that Council receive, consider and determine these petitions together with the two submissions, rather than lay them on the table to be dealt with at a later time. Local Law No.3 2010 clause 102(b) allows for Council to agree to deal with a petition earlier.

Eighteen people indicated that they wanted to speak to their submissions. Two Hearing Meetings were held on 22 May 2019. The 10.45am Hearing Meeting was for the Proposed Budget and Revised Council Plan and 11 of 13 submitters spoke to their submissions. The 2.15pm Hearing Meeting was for the Proposed Rating Strategy and three of five submitters spoke to their submissions. A number of apologies were received from submitters who had previously requested to speak who were unavailable to speak to their submissions at the Hearing Meetings.

Following the Hearing Meetings, Council discussed the submissions and provided comments on all submissions at a Briefing Session on 22 May 2019.

The submissions have been reviewed and a response developed for each one for Council's final consideration and determination.

To assist the administration of the Motions, it is recommended that the Chair determine that each submission be voted on individually (in parts) as per c.61 in Local Law No.3 2010.

RECOMMENDATION

That Council:

- Receives the petition delivered on 27 April 2019, after the submission closing date, from Shirley Cowling in support of her Proposed Budget submission (Confidential Attachment [2.1.3] – Petition - Jumbunna Public Hall Committee – 27 April 2019);
- 2. Receives the petition delivered to Council on 6 May 2019, after the submission closing date, from John McCombe, in support of his Proposed Council Plan submission (Confidential Attachment [2.1.4] Petition Rate Reduction Strategy);
- 3. Considers and determines Shirley Cowling's (Confidential Attachment [2.1.3]) and John McCombe's (Confidential Attachment [2.1.4]) petitions together with their submissions in this meeting;
- 4. Receives, considers and determines the seven submissions and responses contained in Attachment [2.1.1] to the Proposed Rating Strategy 2019-2022, as follows:
 - a. Submission 1 (RS01) from Barry Gilbert re: Reduce the Rural Vacant Land rate from 190% to 140%;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget and the review of the Rating Strategy.

OR

- ii. Reduce the Rural Vacant Land rate from 190% to 140%.
- b. Submission 2 (RS02) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Support Business and Industrial rate but reasoning behind Extractive Industrial and Infrastructure and Utilities rate;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.

OR

ii. Removes the Extractive Industries and Infrastructure category(s) from the Proposed Rating Strategy.

- c. Submission 3 (RS03) from Marie Gerrard-Staton (Rate Challengers a Community South Gippsland Group) re: Five main questions for the Rating Strategy 2019 2022;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Completes a review of the Rates and Charges Hardship Policy (C53) which includes benchmarking against other Victorian Councils, by 30 June 2020.
- d. Submission 4 (RS04) from James Fawcett re: Remove the Rural Residential Rate;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.

OR

- Removes the Rural Residential Rate as a separate category and allocate these properties under the General (Residential)
 Category.
- e. Submission 5 (RS05) from Cheryl Denman re: The Rating Strategy was introduced in 2013 and this is when the rate increases became unsustainable and unfair time to change it;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Notes Council's decision for Marie Gerrard-Staton (RS02) under Item 4(c)(ii) is applicable for this submission.
- f. Submission 6 (RS06) from Ralph Gallagher re: six questions on the Rating Strategy 2019-2022;
 - i. Notes Council's decisions for Barry Gilbert (RS01) under Item 4(a), Noelene Cosson (RS02) under Item 4(b) and James Fawcett (RS04) under Item 4(d) are all applicable for this submission;
- g. Submission 7 (RS07) from Phil Rerden (Foster Chamber of Commerce) re: maintaining the status quo for the Commercial and Industrial differential rate and the Rural Residential' differential rate is contentious;

- That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.
- 5. Receives, considers and determines the 19 submissions and responses (reasons) contained in Attachment [2.1.2] to the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget:
 - a. Submission 1 (AB01) Steven Rath re: Fortnightly rubbish collection –
 Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. This proposal can be considered in the next review of the Kerbside Waste and Recycling Contract in 2021.
 - Submission 2 (AB02) Geoff Treloar re: Jones Street, Foster Drainage /
 Kerb & Channel Proposed Annual Budget 2019/20;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Refers the Jones Street, Foster Drainage / Kerb & Channel proposal to be considered against other priorities in the 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.
 - Submission 3 (AB03) from Charles Price re: Objection to the Bair Street Redevelopment Upgrade / Precinct – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - Determines that as this project is a Council 'Priority Project' and includes \$4.2M in grants funding, that no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
 - d. Submission 4 (AB04) from Pee Wee Lewis (Korumburra Round Table)
 re: Support for the Korumburra Community Hub, Revitalisation Project,
 the Recreation Reserve, Skate Park, and the Jumbunna Road shared
 path to the Korumburra Secondary College. Proposed 2019/20
 Annual Budget;
 - i. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made, as these projects are all progressing.
 - e. Submission 5 (AB05) from Don Atkins re: Sealing of Walkerville Road (last 3km) and Car Park Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;

- That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
- ii. Refers the sealing of Walkerville South Road and car park to be considered against other priorities in the review of the 'Gravel to Sealed Roads' program and 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.
- f. Submission 6 (AB06) from Dr Moragh MacKay (Energy Innovative Cooperative Limited) re: South Gippsland Shire Council and Energy Innovation Cooperative Limited Partnership Proposal Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Revised Council Plan be made;
 AND
 - ii. Prepares a new category with associated guidelines for Community Sustainability Projects to be funded through the Community Grants Program.
- g. Submission 7 (AB07) from Sharon Turton re: Sealing Clancys Road,
 Korumburra and Gravel to Seal Program Funding Proposed 2019/20
 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Advocates to State Government for a reduction in the speed zones for gravel roads to 80km/h; AND
 - iii. Refers the sealing of sealing of Clancy's Road to be considered against other priorities in the review of the 'Gravel to Sealed Roads' program and the 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.
- h. Submission 8 (AB08) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Korumburra Industrial Estate to Commercial Street Footpath Extension and Skip Walking Track at Coal Creek Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Acknowledges Korumburra Industrial Estate is currently Project 30, in the 'Footpath Extension' program; AND

- iii. Skip Walking Track at Coal Creek is included in the 'Paths and Trails Strategy' and is currently unfunded.
- i. Submission 9 (AB09) from Ross Garner re: Various provisions in grant funding and a program (grant in aid) for community creative arts and culture in South Gippsland;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
- j. Submission 10 (AB10) from Craig Kenny and Anne Lewis re: Various requests to be considered in their submission – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget.
 - That Council considers the submitters suggestions in the opportunities for community engagement for the development of the 2020/21 Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Considers the requirements for greater control over weeds management in the proposed review of Local Law No1, by 30 June 2020; AND
 - iii. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- k. Submission 11 (AB11) from Ted Landy (South Walkerville Action Group) re: Objection to the Sealing of Walkerville South Road – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Notes Council's resolution in regard to Don Atkins submission (AB05) in 5(e), as this resolution is applicable to this submission.
- Submission 12 (AB12) from Clive Hope (Meeniyan Progress Association) re: Street Lighting at Tompkins Road, Meeniyan – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
 - ii. Notes Council's decision for Marie Gerrard-Staton (RS02) under Item 4(c)(ii) is applicable for this submission.

- m. Submission 13 (AB13) from John McCombe (South Gippsland Action Group) re: Growth for Rates Reduction and Growth for Reduced Rates to be considered for Exhibition and Equestrian Centre in Stony Creek – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- n. Submission 14 (AB14) from Fred Weight re: 24-hour Boat Launching Facilities at 'The Landing' on Stockyard Creek – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
- Submission 15 (AB15) from Shirley Cowling (Jumbunna Public Hall Committee) re: Sealing Jumbunna Hall Car Park – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Prepares a Council briefing on Council-owned and Communityowned Public Halls.
- p. Submission 16 (AB16) from Paul Katsieris (Walkerville Ratepayers
 Association) re: Acacia Way, Walkerville Path and Sealing Walkerville
 South Road and Drainage Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Acacia Way Proms View Estate footpath is included in the 'Paths and Trails Strategy' and is currently unfunded; AND
 - iii. Notes Council's resolution in regard to item Don Atkins submission (AB05) in 5(e), as this resolution is applicable to this submission.
- q. Submission 17 (AB17) from Ralph Gallagher re: Multiple questions with respect to the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.

- r. Submission 18 (AB18) from Ross Barnacle (Loch Community Development Association) re: List of works that should be commenced ahead of any planned streetscape works in Loch Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made, as many of the works are included in the Loch Streetscape project commencing in June 2019.
- s. Submission 19 (AB19) from Michael Lester (Fish Creek Community Development Group) re: Traffic and Parking Study for Fish Creek Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - i. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made as parking improvements will be considered and addressed in the Fish Creek Streetscape Project, which is currently identified for funding in 2022/23 in the Long Term Financial Plan.
- 6. Receives, considers and determines the six s.223 submissions and responses (reasons) contained in (Attachment [2.1.2]) to the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021:
 - Submission 1 (CP01) Dr Moragh MacKay (Energy Innovative Cooperative Limited) re: Requests amendments to the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021 as proposed by the Energy Innovative Co-operative;
 - i. Notes Council's decision(s) for Dr Moragh Mackay's Budget Submission (AB06) under Item 5(f) is applicable for this submission.
 - Submission 2 (CP02) Eunice Donovan (Leongatha Community House)
 re: Support town based internet access in Leongatha to improve the digital literacy of older and disadvantaged community;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
 - Submission 3 (CP03) from John McCombe (South Gippsland Action Group) re: Council to honour the commitment to reduce the rates by 3 per cent and follow through by embracing the 'Growth for Reduced Rates' plan;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made for Strategy 4.3 being:

"Develop a ten year 'Sustainable Cost Reduction Strategy' based on improved operational efficiencies and population growth, to be utilised for the value for money service improvements, better infrastructure and / or rate reductions":

OR

ii. That the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be returned back to the former Council Plan (2018) Strategy 4.3 being:

"Work in partnership with the Chief Executive Officer and senior staff to develop a four year Rate Reduction Strategy, to reduce the rate burden by 3 per cent through improved innovation and productivity savings, streamlining the administrative structures and processes, through improved Business Unit performance and economic growth." AND

- iii. Removes the Annual Initiative under Objective 4: "Develop a ten year 'Sustainable Cost Reduction Strategy' based on improved organisational efficiencies and population growth, to be utilised for value for money service improvements, better infrastructure and/or rate reductions." AND
- iv. Prepares a Council briefing to determine options to reduce the rate burden by 3 per cent for consideration in the development of the 2020/21 Annual Budget.
- d. Submission 4 (CP04) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Supports the proposed changes in relation to the rate cut objective;
 - i. Notes Council's decisions made for John McCombe's Proposed Council Plan submission (CP03) under Item 6(c), is applicable for this submission.
- e. Submission 5 from Tony Walker (Prom Coast Climate Action Group) re: Develop and Implement a Climate Emergency Response Plan;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Prepares a Council briefing following an investigation into what actions may be relevant for a 'Climate Emergency Response' for the organisation and Shire.

- f. Submission 6 (CP06) Clive Hope (Meeniyan Progress Association) re: Why the delay in the decision and progress on the proposed Equestrian and Exhibition / Expo Centre;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- 7. Notifies all submitters of Council's decisions in regard to their submissions, including the Officers responses contained under the 'Response to Submissions' in Attachments [2.1.1] and [2.1.2].

The Mayor moved the following Motions in separate parts.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 1 TO 3 BE ADOPTED.

That Council:

- Receives the petition delivered on 27 April 2019, after the submission closing date, from Shirley Cowling in support of her Proposed Budget submission (Confidential Attachment [2.1.3] – Petition - Jumbunna Public Hall Committee – 27 April 2019);
- 2. Receives the petition delivered to Council on 6 May 2019, after the submission closing date, from John McCombe, in support of his Proposed Council Plan submission (Confidential Attachment [2.1.4] Petition Rate Reduction Strategy);
- 3. Considers and determines Shirley Cowling's (Confidential Attachment [2.1.3]) and John McCombe's (Confidential Attachment [2.1.4]) petitions together with their submissions in this meeting;

MOVED: Cr Hirst SECONDED: Cr Brown

THAT COUNCIL:

- 1. RECEIVES THE PETITION DELIVERED ON 27 APRIL 2019, AFTER THE SUBMISSION CLOSING DATE, FROM SHIRLEY COWLING IN SUPPORT OF HER PROPOSED BUDGET SUBMISSION (CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT [2.1.3] PETITION JUMBUNNA PUBLIC HALL COMMITTEE 27 APRIL 2019);
- 2. RECEIVES THE PETITION DELIVERED TO COUNCIL ON 6 MAY 2019,
 AFTER THE SUBMISSION CLOSING DATE, FROM JOHN MCCOMBE, IN
 SUPPORT OF HIS PROPOSED COUNCIL PLAN SUBMISSION
 (CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT [2.1.4] PETITION RATE REDUCTION
 STRATEGY);
- 3. CONSIDERS AND DETERMINES SHIRLEY COWLING'S (CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT [2.1.3]) AND JOHN MCCOMBE'S (CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENT [2.1.4]) PETITIONS TOGETHER WITH THEIR SUBMISSIONS IN THIS MEETING;

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ITEMS 4A BE ADOPTED.

- 4. Receives, considers and determines the seven submissions and responses contained in Attachment [2.1.1] to the Proposed Rating Strategy 2019-2022, as follows:
 - a. Submission 1 (RS01) from Barry Gilbert re: Reduce the Rural Vacant Land rate from 190% to 140%;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget and the review of the Rating Strategy.

OR

ii. Reduce the Rural Vacant Land rate from 190% to 140%.

Councillor Hirst moved a Motion that is different to the Recommendation for Item 4a.

MOVED: Cr Hirst SECONDED: Cr Finlay

- 4. RECEIVES, CONSIDERS AND DETERMINES THE SEVEN SUBMISSIONS AND RESPONSES CONTAINED IN ATTACHMENT [2.1.1] TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY 2019-2022, AS FOLLOWS:
 - a. SUBMISSION 1 (RS01) FROM BARRY GILBERT RE: REDUCE THE RURAL VACANT LAND RATE FROM 190% TO 140%;
 - ii. REDUCE THE RURAL VACANT LAND RATE FROM 190% TO 150%.

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Hirst, Hill, Argento, Finlay

AGAINST: Councillors Brown, Skinner

CARRIED

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ITEMS 4B BE ADOPTED.

- b. Submission 2 (RS02) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Support Business and Industrial rate but reasoning behind Extractive Industrial and Infrastructure and Utilities rate;
 - i. That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.

OR

Removes the Extractive Industries and Infrastructure category(s) ii. from the Proposed Rating Strategy.

Councillor Skinner Moved a Motion different to the Recommendation for Item 4b.

MOVED: Cr Skinner

- SECONDED:
 - b. SUBMISSION 2 (RS02) FROM NOELENE COSSON (KORUMBURRA **BUSINESS ASSOCIATION) RE: SUPPORT BUSINESS AND** INDUSTRIAL RATE BUT REASONING BEHIND EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES RATE;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES BE MADE TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY / PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET.

The Motion LAPSED for want of a seconder.

Councillor Argento Moved a Motion different to the Recommendation for Item 4b.

MOVED: Cr Argento **SECONDED:** Cr Brown

- b. SUBMISSION 2 (RS02) FROM NOELENE COSSON (KORUMBURRA BUSINESS ASSOCIATION) RE: SUPPORT BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL RATE BUT REASONING BEHIND EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES RATE;
 - ii. REMOVES THE EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE CATEGORY(S) FROM THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY.

FOR: Councillors Skinner, Argento, Brown **AGAINST:** Councillors Hirst, McEwen, Finlay, Hill

LOST

Councillor McEwen Moved a Motion that was different from the original Recommendation for Item 4b.

MOVED: Cr McEwen SECONDED: Cr Hirst

- b. SUBMISSION 2 (RS02) FROM NOELENE COSSON (KORUMBURRA BUSINESS ASSOCIATION) RE: SUPPORT BUSINESS AND INDUSTRIAL RATE BUT REASONING BEHIND EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIAL AND INFRASTRUCTURE AND UTILITIES RATE;
 - i. CALLS FOR A REPORT TO THE 26 JUNE 2019 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING TO CONSIDER APPLYING A DIFFERENT DIFFERENTIAL TO THE EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRIES CATEGORY, INCLUDING REASONS WHY A DIFFERENTIAL CHANGE WOULD BE REQUIRED.

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Hill, Finlay, Hirst **AGAINST:** Councillors Skinner, Argento, Brown

CARRIED

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 4C BE ADOPTED.

- Submission 3 (RS03) from Marie Gerrard-Staton (Rate Challengers a Community South Gippsland Group) re: Five main questions for the Rating Strategy 2019 – 2022;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Completes a review of the Rates and Charges Hardship Policy (C53) which includes benchmarking against other Victorian Councils, by 30 June 2020.

MOVED: Cr Skinner SECONDED: Cr Brown

- c. SUBMISSION 3 (RS03) FROM MARIE GERRARD-STATON (RATE CHALLENGERS A COMMUNITY SOUTH GIPPSLAND GROUP) RE: FIVE MAIN QUESTIONS FOR THE RATING STRATEGY 2019 2022;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES BE MADE TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY / PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET; AND
 - ii. COMPLETES A REVIEW OF THE RATES AND CHARGES HARDSHIP POLICY (C53) WHICH INCLUDES BENCHMARKING AGAINST OTHER VICTORIAN COUNCILS, BY 30 JUNE 2020.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 4D BE ADOPTED.

- d. Submission 4 (RS04) from James Fawcett re: Remove the Rural Residential Rate;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.

OR

 Removes the Rural Residential Rate as a separate category and allocate these properties under the General (Residential)
 Category.

MOVED: Cr Brown SECONDED: Cr Finlay

- d. SUBMISSION 4 (RS04) FROM JAMES FAWCETT RE: REMOVE THE RURAL RESIDENTIAL RATE;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES BE MADE TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY / PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 4E BE ADOPTED.

- e. Submission 5 (RS05) from Cheryl Denman re: The Rating Strategy was introduced in 2013 and this is when the rate increases became unsustainable and unfair time to change it;
 - That no changes be made to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Notes Council's decision for Marie Gerrard-Staton (RS02) under Item 4(c)(ii) is applicable for this submission.

MOVED: Cr Brown SECONDED: Cr Skinner

- e. SUBMISSION 5 (RS05) FROM CHERYL DENMAN RE: THE RATING STRATEGY WAS INTRODUCED IN 2013 AND THIS IS WHEN THE RATE INCREASES BECAME UNSUSTAINABLE AND UNFAIR TIME TO CHANGE IT;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES BE MADE TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY / PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET; AND
 - ii. NOTES COUNCIL'S DECISION FOR MARIE GERRARD-STATON (RS02) UNDER ITEM 4(C)(II) IS APPLICABLE FOR THIS SUBMISSION.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 4F BE ADOPTED.

- f. Submission 6 (RS06) from Ralph Gallagher re: six questions on the Rating Strategy 2019-2022;
 - Notes Council's decisions for Barry Gilbert (RS01) under Item 4(a),
 Noelene Cosson (RS02) under Item 4(b) and James Fawcett
 (RS04) under Item 4(d) are all applicable for this submission;

MOVED: Cr Finlay SECONDED: Cr Skinner

- f. SUBMISSION 6 (RS06) FROM RALPH GALLAGHER RE: SIX QUESTIONS ON THE RATING STRATEGY 2019-2022;
 - i. NOTES COUNCIL'S DECISIONS FOR BARRY GILBERT (RS01)
 UNDER ITEM 4(A), NOELENE COSSON (RS02) UNDER ITEM
 4(B) AND JAMES FAWCETT (RS04) UNDER ITEM 4(D) ARE ALL
 APPLICABLE FOR THIS SUBMISSION;

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 4G BE ADOPTED.

- g. Submission 7 (RS07) from Phil Rerden (Foster Chamber of Commerce) re: maintaining the status quo for the Commercial and Industrial differential rate and the Rural Residential' differential rate is contentious;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Rating Strategy / Proposed Annual Budget.

MOVED: Cr Skinner SECONDED: Cr Brown

- g. SUBMISSION 7 (RS07) FROM PHIL RERDEN (FOSTER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE) RE: MAINTAINING THE STATUS QUO FOR THE COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DIFFERENTIAL RATE AND THE RURAL RESIDENTIAL' DIFFERENTIAL RATE IS CONTENTIOUS;
 - i. THAT THE SUBMISSION HAS BEEN CONSIDERED BUT IS NOT SUPPORTED, RESULTING IN NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED RATING STRATEGY / PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5A BE ADOPTED.

- 5. Receives, considers and determines the 19 submissions and responses (reasons) contained in Attachment [2.1.2] to the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget:
 - Submission 1 (AB01) Steven Rath re: Fortnightly rubbish collection Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. This proposal can be considered in the next review of the Kerbside Waste and Recycling Contract in 2021.

MOVED: Cr Hirst SECONDED: Cr Brown

- 5. RECEIVES, CONSIDERS AND DETERMINES THE 19 SUBMISSIONS AND RESPONSES (REASONS) CONTAINED IN ATTACHMENT [2.1.2] TO THE PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET:
 - a. SUBMISSION 1 (AB01) STEVEN RATH RE: FORTNIGHTLY RUBBISH COLLECTION PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET /
 REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. THIS PROPOSAL CAN BE CONSIDERED IN THE NEXT REVIEW OF THE KERB-SIDE WASTE AND RECYCLING CONTRACT IN 2021.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5B BE ADOPTED.

- Submission 2 (AB02) Geoff Treloar re: Jones Street, Foster Drainage /
 Kerb & Channel Proposed Annual Budget 2019/20;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Refers the Jones Street, Foster Drainage / Kerb & Channel proposal to be considered against other priorities in the 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.

MOVED: Cr Argento **SECONDED:** Cr Skinner

- b. SUBMISSION 2 (AB02) GEOFF TRELOAR RE: JONES STREET, FOSTER DRAINAGE / KERB & CHANNEL PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET 2019/20:
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. REFERS THE JONES STREET, FOSTER DRAINAGE / KERB & CHANNEL PROPOSAL TO BE CONSIDERED AGAINST OTHER PRIORITIES IN THE 'ROADS TO RECOVERY' GRANT FUNDING PROGRAM.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5C BE ADOPTED.

- Submission 3 (AB03) from Charles Price re: Objection to the Bair Street Redevelopment Upgrade / Precinct – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - Determines that as this project is a Council 'Priority Project' and includes \$4.2M in grants funding, that no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.

MOVED: Cr Hirst SECONDED: Cr Brown

- c. SUBMISSION 3 (AB03) FROM CHARLES PRICE RE: OBJECTION TO THE BAIR STREET REDEVELOPMENT UPGRADE / PRECINCT PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. DETERMINES THAT AS THIS PROJECT IS A COUNCIL 'PRIORITY PROJECT' AND INCLUDES \$4.2M IN GRANTS FUNDING, THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5D BE ADOPTED.

- d. Submission 4 (AB04) from Pee Wee Lewis (Korumburra Round Table)
 re: Support for the Korumburra Community Hub, Revitalisation Project,
 the Recreation Reserve, Skate Park, and the Jumbunna Road shared
 path to the Korumburra Secondary College. Proposed 2019/20
 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made, as these projects are all progressing.

MOVED: Cr Brown SECONDED: Cr Hirst

- d. SUBMISSION 4 (AB04) FROM PEE WEE LEWIS (KORUMBURRA ROUND TABLE) RE: SUPPORT FOR THE KORUMBURRA COMMUNITY HUB, REVITALISATION PROJECT, THE RECREATION RESERVE, SKATE PARK, AND THE JUMBUNNA ROAD SHARED PATH TO THE KORUMBURRA SECONDARY COLLEGE. PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE, AS THESE PROJECTS ARE ALL PROGRESSING.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5E BE ADOPTED.

- e. Submission 5 (AB05) from Don Atkins re: Sealing of Walkerville Road (last 3km) and Car Park Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Refers the sealing of Walkerville South Road and car park to be considered against other priorities in the review of the 'Gravel to Sealed Roads' program and 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.

MOVED: Cr Skinner **SECONDED:** Cr Argento

- e. SUBMISSION 5 (AB05) FROM DON ATKINS RE: SEALING OF WALKERVILLE ROAD (LAST 3KM) AND CAR PARK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. REFERS THE SEALING OF WALKERVILLE SOUTH ROAD AND CAR PARK TO BE CONSIDERED AGAINST OTHER PRIORITIES IN THE REVIEW OF THE 'GRAVEL TO SEALED ROADS' PROGRAM AND 'ROADS TO RECOVERY' GRANT FUNDING PROGRAM.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5F BE ADOPTED.

- f. Submission 6 (AB06) from Dr Moragh MacKay (Energy Innovative Cooperative Limited) re: South Gippsland Shire Council and Energy Innovation Cooperative Limited Partnership Proposal Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Revised Council Plan be made;
 AND
 - ii. Prepares a new category with associated guidelines for Community Sustainability Projects to be funded through the Community Grants Program.

MOVED: Cr Skinner **SECONDED:** Cr Hirst

- f. SUBMISSION 6 (AB06) FROM DR MORAGH MACKAY (ENERGY INNOVATIVE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED) RE: SOUTH GIPPSLAND SHIRE COUNCIL AND ENERGY INNOVATION COOPERATIVE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP PROPOSAL PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. PREPARES A NEW CATEGORY WITH ASSOCIATED GUIDELINES FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY PROJECTS TO BE FUNDED THROUGH THE COMMUNITY GRANTS PROGRAM.

FOR: Councillors Skinner, Finlay, Argento, Hill, Hirst, McEwen

AGAINST: Councillor Brown

CARRIED

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5G AND 5H BE ADOPTED.

- g. Submission 7 (AB07) from Sharon Turton re: Sealing Clancys Road,
 Korumburra and Gravel to Seal Program Funding Proposed 2019/20
 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Advocates to State Government for a reduction in the speed zones for gravel roads to 80km/h; AND
 - iii. Refers the sealing of sealing of Clancy's Road to be considered against other priorities in the review of the 'Gravel to Sealed Roads' program and the 'Roads to Recovery' grant funding program.
- h. Submission 8 (AB08) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Korumburra Industrial Estate to Commercial Street Footpath Extension and Skip Walking Track at Coal Creek Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Acknowledges Korumburra Industrial Estate is currently Project30, in the 'Footpath Extension' program; AND
 - iii. Skip Walking Track at Coal Creek is included in the 'Paths and Trails Strategy' and is currently unfunded.

MOVED: Cr McEwen SECONDED: Cr Skinner

- g. SUBMISSION 7 (AB07) FROM SHARON TURTON RE: SEALING CLANCYS ROAD, KORUMBURRA AND GRAVEL TO SEAL PROGRAM FUNDING PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. ADVOCATES TO STATE GOVERNMENT FOR A REDUCTION IN THE SPEED ZONES FOR GRAVEL ROADS TO 80KM/H; AND

- iii. REFERS THE SEALING OF SEALING OF CLANCY'S ROAD TO BE CONSIDERED AGAINST OTHER PRIORITIES IN THE REVIEW OF THE 'GRAVEL TO SEALED ROADS' PROGRAM AND THE 'ROADS TO RECOVERY' GRANT FUNDING PROGRAM.
- h. SUBMISSION 8 (AB08) FROM NOELENE COSSON (KORUMBURRA BUSINESS ASSOCIATION) RE: KORUMBURRA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE TO COMMERCIAL STREET FOOTPATH EXTENSION AND SKIP WALKING TRACK AT COAL CREEK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. ACKNOWLEDGES KORUMBURRA INDUSTRIAL ESTATE IS CURRENTLY PROJECT 30, IN THE 'FOOTPATH EXTENSION' PROGRAM; AND
 - iii. SKIP WALKING TRACK AT COAL CREEK IS INCLUDED IN THE 'PATHS AND TRAILS STRATEGY' AND IS CURRENTLY UNFUNDED.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5I BE ADOPTED.

- i. Submission 9 (AB09) from Ross Garner re: Various provisions in grant funding and a program (grant in aid) for community creative arts and culture in South Gippsland;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.

MOVED: Cr Hirst SECONDED: Cr Skinner

- i. SUBMISSION 9 (AB09) FROM ROSS GARNER RE: VARIOUS PROVISIONS IN GRANT FUNDING AND A PROGRAM (GRANT IN AID) FOR COMMUNITY CREATIVE ARTS AND CULTURE IN SOUTH GIPPSLAND;
 - i. THAT THE SUBMISSION HAS BEEN CONSIDERED BUT IS NOT SUPPORTED, RESULTING IN NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN.

Councillor McEwen declared a Conflict of Interest to this item at 12.20pm and left the Council Meeting.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

Note: Councillor McEwen was not present for the vote.

Councillor McEwen returned to the Council Meeting at 12.21pm.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 5J TO 5S BE ADOPTED.

- j. Submission 10 (AB10) from Craig Kenny and Anne Lewis re: Various requests to be considered in their submission – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget.
 - That Council considers the submitters suggestions in the opportunities for community engagement for the development of the 2020/21 Annual Budget; AND
 - ii. Considers the requirements for greater control over weeds management in the proposed review of Local Law No1, by 30 June 2020; AND
 - iii. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- k. Submission 11 (AB11) from Ted Landy (South Walkerville Action Group) re: Objection to the Sealing of Walkerville South Road – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Notes Council's resolution in regard to Don Atkins submission (AB05) in 5(e), as this resolution is applicable to this submission.
- I. Submission 12 (AB12) from Clive Hope (Meeniyan Progress Association) re: Street Lighting at Tompkins Road, Meeniyan – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
 - ii. Notes Council's decision for Marie Gerrard-Staton (RS02) under Item 4(c)(ii) is applicable for this submission.
- m. Submission 13 (AB13) from John McCombe (South Gippsland Action Group) re: Growth for Rates Reduction and Growth for Reduced Rates to be considered for Exhibition and Equestrian Centre in Stony Creek – Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - i. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.

- n. Submission 14 (AB14) from Fred Weight re: 24-hour Boat Launching Facilities at 'The Landing' on Stockyard Creek Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.
- o. Submission 15 (AB15) from Shirley Cowling (Jumbunna Public Hall Committee) re: Sealing Jumbunna Hall Car Park Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Prepares a Council briefing on Council-owned and Communityowned Public Halls.
- p. Submission 16 (AB16) from Paul Katsieris (Walkerville Ratepayers
 Association) re: Acacia Way, Walkerville Path and Sealing Walkerville
 South Road and Drainage Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Acacia Way Proms View Estate footpath is included in the 'Paths and Trails Strategy' and is currently unfunded; AND
 - iii. Notes Council's resolution in regard to item Don Atkins submission (AB05) in 5(e), as this resolution is applicable to this submission.
- q. Submission 17 (AB17) from Ralph Gallagher re: Multiple questions with respect to the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- r. Submission 18 (AB18) from Ross Barnacle (Loch Community Development Association) re: List of works that should be commenced ahead of any planned streetscape works in Loch Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made, as many of the works are included in the Loch Streetscape project commencing in June 2019.

- s. Submission 19 (AB19) from Michael Lester (Fish Creek Community Development Group) re: Traffic and Parking Study for Fish Creek Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget;
 - i. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made as parking improvements will be considered and addressed in the Fish Creek Streetscape Project, which is currently identified for funding in 2022/23 in the Long Term Financial Plan.

MOVED: Cr Skinner SECONDED: Cr Hirst

- j. SUBMISSION 10 (AB10) FROM CRAIG KENNY AND ANNE LEWIS RE: VARIOUS REQUESTS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THEIR SUBMISSION PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET.
 - i. THAT COUNCIL CONSIDERS THE SUBMITTERS SUGGESTIONS IN THE OPPORTUNITIES FOR COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 2020/21 ANNUAL BUDGET; AND
 - ii. CONSIDERS THE REQUIREMENTS FOR GREATER CONTROL OVER WEEDS MANAGEMENT IN THE PROPOSED REVIEW OF LOCAL LAW NO1, BY 30 JUNE 2020; AND
 - iii. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE.
- k. SUBMISSION 11 (AB11) FROM TED LANDY (SOUTH WALKERVILLE ACTION GROUP) RE: OBJECTION TO THE SEALING OF WALKERVILLE SOUTH ROAD PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. NOTES COUNCIL'S RESOLUTION IN REGARD TO DON ATKINS SUBMISSION (AB05) IN 5(E), AS THIS RESOLUTION IS APPLICABLE TO THIS SUBMISSION.
- I. SUBMISSION 12 (AB12) FROM CLIVE HOPE (MEENIYAN PROGRESS ASSOCIATION) RE: STREET LIGHTING AT TOMPKINS ROAD, MEENIYAN PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT THE SUBMISSION HAS BEEN CONSIDERED BUT IS NOT SUPPORTED, RESULTING IN NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN.

- ii. NOTES COUNCIL'S DECISION FOR MARIE GERRARD-STATON (RS02) UNDER ITEM 4(C)(II) IS APPLICABLE FOR THIS SUBMISSION.
- m. SUBMISSION 13 (AB13) FROM JOHN MCCOMBE (SOUTH GIPPSLAND ACTION GROUP) RE: GROWTH FOR RATES REDUCTION AND GROWTH FOR REDUCED RATES TO BE CONSIDERED FOR EXHIBITION AND EQUESTRIAN CENTRE IN STONY CREEK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE.
- n. SUBMISSION 14 (AB14) FROM FRED WEIGHT RE: 24-HOUR BOAT LAUNCHING FACILITIES AT 'THE LANDING' ON STOCKYARD CREEK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT THE SUBMISSION HAS BEEN CONSIDERED BUT IS NOT SUPPORTED, RESULTING IN NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN.
- o. SUBMISSION 15 (AB15) FROM SHIRLEY COWLING (JUMBUNNA PUBLIC HALL COMMITTEE) RE: SEALING JUMBUNNA HALL CAR PARK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET /
 REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. PREPARES A COUNCIL BRIEFING ON COUNCIL-OWNED AND COMMUNITY-OWNED PUBLIC HALLS.
- p. SUBMISSION 16 (AB16) FROM PAUL KATSIERIS (WALKERVILLE RATEPAYERS ASSOCIATION) RE: ACACIA WAY, WALKERVILLE PATH AND SEALING WALKERVILLE SOUTH ROAD AND DRAINAGE PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. ACACIA WAY PROMS VIEW ESTATE FOOTPATH IS INCLUDED IN THE 'PATHS AND TRAILS STRATEGY' AND IS CURRENTLY UNFUNDED; AND
 - iii. NOTES COUNCIL'S RESOLUTION IN REGARD TO ITEM DON ATKINS SUBMISSION (AB05) IN 5(E), AS THIS RESOLUTION IS APPLICABLE TO THIS SUBMISSION.

- q. SUBMISSION 17 (AB17) FROM RALPH GALLAGHER RE: MULTIPLE QUESTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE.
- r. SUBMISSION 18 (AB18) FROM ROSS BARNACLE (LOCH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ASSOCIATION) RE: LIST OF WORKS THAT SHOULD BE COMMENCED AHEAD OF ANY PLANNED STREETSCAPE WORKS IN LOCH PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET:
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET /
 REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE, AS MANY OF THE WORKS
 ARE INCLUDED IN THE LOCH STREETSCAPE PROJECT
 COMMENCING IN JUNE 2019.
- s. SUBMISSION 19 (AB19) FROM MICHAEL LESTER (FISH CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GROUP) RE: TRAFFIC AND PARKING STUDY FOR FISH CREEK PROPOSED 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET /
 REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE AS PARKING
 IMPROVEMENTS WILL BE CONSIDERED AND ADDRESSED IN
 THE FISH CREEK STREETSCAPE PROJECT, WHICH IS
 CURRENTLY IDENTIFIED FOR FUNDING IN 2022/23 IN THE
 LONG TERM FINANCIAL PLAN.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 6A AND 6B BE ADOPTED.

- 6. Receives, considers and determines the six s.223 submissions and responses (reasons) contained in (Attachment [2.1.2]) to the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021:
 - a. Submission 1 (CP01) Dr Moragh MacKay (Energy Innovative Cooperative Limited) re: Requests amendments to the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021 as proposed by the Energy Innovative Co-operative;
 - Notes Council's decision(s) for Dr Moragh Mackay's Budget Submission (AB06) under Item 5(f) is applicable for this submission.
 - Submission 2 (CP02) Eunice Donovan (Leongatha Community House)
 re: Support town based internet access in Leongatha to improve the digital literacy of older and disadvantaged community;
 - That the submission has been considered but is not supported, resulting in no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan.

MOVED: Cr Skinner SECONDED: Cr Finlay

- 6. RECEIVES, CONSIDERS AND DETERMINES THE SIX S.223 SUBMISSIONS AND RESPONSES (REASONS) CONTAINED IN (ATTACHMENT [2.1.2]) TO THE REVISED COUNCIL PLAN 2017-2021:
 - a. SUBMISSION 1 (CP01) DR MORAGH MACKAY (ENERGY INNOVATIVE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED) RE: REQUESTS AMENDMENTS TO THE REVISED COUNCIL PLAN 2017-2021 AS PROPOSED BY THE ENERGY INNOVATIVE CO-OPERATIVE;
 - i. NOTES COUNCIL'S DECISION(S) FOR DR MORAGH MACKAY'S BUDGET SUBMISSION (AB06) UNDER ITEM 5(F) IS APPLICABLE FOR THIS SUBMISSION.
 - b. SUBMISSION 2 (CP02) EUNICE DONOVAN (LEONGATHA COMMUNITY HOUSE) RE: SUPPORT TOWN BASED INTERNET ACCESS IN LEONGATHA TO IMPROVE THE DIGITAL LITERACY OF OLDER AND DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITY:
 - i. THAT THE SUBMISSION HAS BEEN CONSIDERED BUT IS NOT SUPPORTED, RESULTING IN NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 6C BE ADOPTED.

- Submission 3 (CP03) from John McCombe (South Gippsland Action Group) re: Council to honour the commitment to reduce the rates by 3 per cent and follow through by embracing the 'Growth for Reduced Rates' plan;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made for Strategy 4.3 being:

"Develop a ten year 'Sustainable Cost Reduction Strategy' based on improved operational efficiencies and population growth, to be utilised for the value for money service improvements, better infrastructure and / or rate reductions";

OR

ii. That the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be returned back to the former Council Plan (2018) Strategy 4.3 being:

"Work in partnership with the Chief Executive Officer and senior staff to develop a four year Rate Reduction Strategy, to reduce the rate burden by 3 per cent through improved innovation and productivity savings, streamlining the administrative structures and processes, through improved Business Unit performance and economic growth." AND

- iii. Removes the Annual Initiative under Objective 4: "Develop a ten year 'Sustainable Cost Reduction Strategy' based on improved organisational efficiencies and population growth, to be utilised for value for money service improvements, better infrastructure and/or rate reductions." AND
- iv. Prepares a Council briefing to determine options to reduce the rate burden by 3 per cent for consideration in the development of the 2020/21 Annual Budget.

Councillor Finlay declared a conflict of interest and left the Council Meeting at 12.28pm.

Councillor McEwen Moved a Motion different to the Recommendation.

MOVED: Cr McEwen SECONDED: Cr Hirst

Councillor Skinner requested to vote on the each item individually (clause 60-Seperation of Motions).

The Mayor determined to vote on the Motion c.i. and c.ii. in part together and c.iii. separately and c(iv) separately.

- c. SUBMISSION 3 (CP03) FROM JOHN MCCOMBE (SOUTH GIPPSLAND ACTION GROUP) RE: COUNCIL TO HONOUR THE COMMITMENT TO REDUCE THE RATES BY 3 PER CENT AND FOLLOW THROUGH BY EMBRACING THE 'GROWTH FOR REDUCED RATES' PLAN;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET /
 REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE FOR STRATEGY 4.3, BEING:

"DEVELOP A TEN YEAR 'SUSTAINABLE COST REDUCTION STRATEGY'
BASED ON IMPROVED OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES AND
POPULATION GROWTH, TO BE UTILISED FOR THE VALUE FOR
MONEY SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS, BETTER INFRASTRUCTURE AND /
OR RATE REDUCTIONS"; AND

ii. THAT THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE AMENDED TO RETAIN THE FORMER COUNCIL PLAN (2018) STRATEGY 4.3, AMENDED TO 4.4, BEING:

"WORK IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND SENIOR STAFF TO DEVELOP A FOUR YEAR RATE REDUCTION STRATEGY, TO REDUCE THE RATE BURDEN BY 3 PER CENT THROUGH IMPROVED INNOVATION AND PRODUCTIVITY SAVINGS, STREAMLINING THE ADMINISTRATIVE STRUCTURES AND PROCESSES, THROUGH IMPROVED BUSINESS UNIT PERFORMANCE AND ECONOMIC GROWTH." AND

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Hirst, Skinner, Hill, Argento

AGAINST: Councillor Brown

CARRIED

- c. SUBMISSION 3 (CP03) FROM JOHN MCCOMBE (SOUTH GIPPSLAND ACTION GROUP) RE: COUNCIL TO HONOUR THE COMMITMENT TO REDUCE THE RATES BY 3 PER CENT AND FOLLOW THROUGH BY EMBRACING THE 'GROWTH FOR REDUCED RATES' PLAN;
 - iii. RETAINS THE ANNUAL INITIATIVE UNDER OBJECTIVE 4:
 "DEVELOP A TEN YEAR 'SUSTAINABLE COST REDUCTION
 STRATEGY' BASED ON IMPROVED ORGANISATIONAL
 EFFICIENCIES AND POPULATION GROWTH, TO BE UTILISED FOR
 VALUE FOR MONEY SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS, BETTER
 INFRASTRUCTURE AND/OR RATE REDUCTIONS." AND

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Argento, Hirst, Hill

AGAINST: Councillors Skinner, Brown

CARRIED

- c. SUBMISSION 3 (CP03) FROM JOHN MCCOMBE (SOUTH GIPPSLAND ACTION GROUP) RE: COUNCIL TO HONOUR THE COMMITMENT TO REDUCE THE RATES BY 3 PER CENT AND FOLLOW THROUGH BY EMBRACING THE 'GROWTH FOR REDUCED RATES' PLAN;
 - iv. CALL FOR A REPORT TO THE ORDINARY MEETING IN 26 JUNE 2019 TO CONSIDER OPTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE 3 PER CENT 'RATE REDUCTION STRATEGY' FOR THE 2019/20 ANNUAL BUDGET.

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Hirst, Hill AGAINST: Councillors Argento, Brown, Skinner

The Motion was CARRIED on the casting vote of the Mayor.

Note: Councillor Finlay was not present for the vote.

Councillor Finlay returned to the Council Meeting 12.52pm.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 6D BE ADOPTED.

- d. Submission 4 (CP04) from Noelene Cosson (Korumburra Business Association) re: Supports the proposed changes in relation to the rate cut objective;
 - i. Notes Council's decisions made for John McCombe's Proposed Council Plan submission (CP03) under Item 6(c), is applicable for this submission.

MOVED: Cr Skinner **SECONDED:** Cr Hirst

- d. SUBMISSION 4 (CP04) FROM NOELENE COSSON (KORUMBURRA BUSINESS ASSOCIATION) RE: SUPPORTS THE PROPOSED CHANGES IN RELATION TO THE RATE CUT OBJECTIVE;
 - i. NOTES COUNCIL'S DECISIONS MADE FOR JOHN MCCOMBE'S PROPOSED COUNCIL PLAN SUBMISSION (CP03) UNDER ITEM 6(C), IS APPLICABLE FOR THIS SUBMISSION.

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 6E BE ADOPTED.

- e. Submission 5 from Tony Walker (Prom Coast Climate Action Group) re: Develop and Implement a Climate Emergency Response Plan;
 - That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made; AND
 - ii. Prepares a Council briefing following an investigation into what actions may be relevant for a 'Climate Emergency Response' for the organisation and Shire.

MOVED: Cr McEwen SECONDED: Cr Skinner

- e. SUBMISSION 5 FROM TONY WALKER (PROM COAST CLIMATE ACTION GROUP) RE: DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT A CLIMATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE; AND
 - ii. PREPARES A COUNCIL BRIEFING FOLLOWING AN INVESTIGATION INTO WHAT ACTIONS MAY BE RELEVANT FOR A 'CLIMATE EMERGENCY RESPONSE' FOR THE ORGANISATION AND SHIRE.

FOR: Councillors McEwen, Hill, Skinner, Argento, Hirst

AGAINST: Councillors Finlay, Brown

CARRIED

THAT THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN ITEMS 6F AND ITEM 7 BE ADOPTED.

- f. Submission 6 (CP06) Clive Hope (Meeniyan Progress Association) re: Why the delay in the decision and progress on the proposed Equestrian and Exhibition / Expo Centre;
 - i. That no changes to the Proposed Annual Budget / Revised Council Plan be made.
- 7. Notifies all submitters of Council's decisions in regard to their submissions, including the Officers responses contained under the 'Response to Submissions' in Attachments [2.1.1] and [2.1.2].

MOVED: Cr Skinner SECONDED: Cr Hirst

- f. SUBMISSION 6 (CP06) CLIVE HOPE (MEENIYAN PROGRESS ASSOCIATION) RE: WHY THE DELAY IN THE DECISION AND PROGRESS ON THE PROPOSED EQUESTRIAN AND EXHIBITION / EXPO CENTRE;
 - i. THAT NO CHANGES TO THE PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET / REVISED COUNCIL PLAN BE MADE.
- 7. NOTIFIES ALL SUBMITTERS OF COUNCIL'S DECISIONS IN REGARD TO THEIR SUBMISSIONS, INCLUDING THE OFFICERS RESPONSES CONTAINED UNDER THE 'RESPONSE TO SUBMISSIONS' IN ATTACHMENTS [2.1.1] AND [2.1.2].

REPORT

The Proposed Budget has been prepared following community consultation throughout the year and is guided by priorities outlined in its key strategic documents including the Revised Council Plan 2017-2021 and 15 Year Long Term Financial Strategies.

Following the Open Hearing of submissions on the Proposed Budget, Council Plan and Proposed Rating Strategy on 22 May 2019, Councillors held a Closed Briefing session to discuss the information contained in the submissions and provided comments on each submission.

The **Attachment [2.1.1]** – s.223 Submissions to the Proposed 2019-2022 Rating Strategy and **Attachment [2.1.2]** – s.223 Submissions to the Proposed 2019/20 Annual Budget and Proposed Revised 2017-2021 Council Plan encapsulate community feedback arising from the formal public exhibition of these strategic documents. The attachments contain Council's responses to each individual submission.

Summary of Proposed Rating Strategy Submissions

Seven submissions were received for the Proposed 2019-2022 Rating Strategy. They are summarised as follows:

Definition	Number of
	Submissions
Changes to the advertised differential rates	3
Questioning the need for the new categories	2
Rating Strategy process, level of rates raised, financial hardship	2

Summary of Proposed Annual Budget and Revised Council Plan Submissions

There were 25 submissions received for the Annual Budget and Revised Council Plan. The 19 Proposed Budget submissions relate to the following topics:

Definition	Number of Submissions
	Subillissions
Infrastructure	10
Waste management and garbage collection	1
Bair Street, Leongatha redevelopment	1
Korumburra Hub	1
Advocacy	1
Arts and Culture	1
Economic growth	1
Other	3

There are six submissions relating to the Revised Council Plan, two being cojoined as Proposed Budget submissions. The submissions relate to the following topics:

Definition	Number of
	Submissions
Sustainability and climate change	2
Town based Internet	1
Support for proposed Strategic Objective 4.3	1
- Sustainable Cost Reduction Strategy	
Retention of former Strategic Objective 4.3	1
- 3 per cent Rate Reduction	
Equestrian and Exhibition/Expo Centre	1

CONSULTATION

The Proposed Rating Strategy and the Proposed Budget were placed on public exhibition from 26 March 2019 to 26 April 2019. Twenty-six submissions were received and are attached for Council's consideration and determination (Attachment [2.1.1] and Attachment [2.1.2]).

Twelve submitters spoke to their submissions. The presentations took place on 22 May 2019. The Councillors were provided with an opportunity to ask questions of the submitters and seek further clarification on their submissions.

RESOURCES

The current Proposed Rating Strategy and the Proposed Budget are sustainable and meet the requirements determined by the Local Government Act 1989. Council is required to ensure that a sustainable Budget can be passed that will not place a financial burden on future generations.

RISKS

If Council determines that only insignificant changes be made to the Proposed Council Plan, Proposed Budget or Proposed Rating Strategy, then a final Revised Council Plan, Annual Budget and Rating Strategy can proceed with minor amendments to the adoption stage scheduled for the 26 June 2019 Ordinary Meeting of Council. This approach minimises Council's risk of breaching legislation.

If Council determines that significant changes are to be made to the Proposed Council Plan and/or Proposed Budget that make material changes and affect the financial operations and position of Council, then Council would be required to prepare a new Proposed Budget and/or Revised Council Plan and undertake a further s.223 public consultation process.

In this situation a request to the Minister for Local Government for an extension of time would be required, with no guarantee of approval potentially leaving Council in breach of the Local Government Act 1989.

STAFF DISCLOSURE

Nil

ATTACHMENTS

Attachments are available on Council's website -visit www.southgippsland.vic.gov.au.

- 1. S223 Submissions Proposed Rating Strategy 2019 2022 29 May 2019 [2.1.1]
- 2. S223 Submissions Proposed 2019-20 Annual Budget and Revised Council Plan 2017 29 May 2019 [2.1.2]

CONFIDENTIAL ATTACHMENTS

Confidential Attachment [2.1.3] – Petition - Jumbunna Public Hall Committee – 27 April 2019 and Confidential Attachment [2.1.4] – Petition – Rate Reduction Strategy – has been provided in accordance with s.77(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1989. The Chief Executive Officer designates this item as confidential information on the grounds that it relates to s.89(2)(h) – any other matter which the Council or Special Committee considers would prejudice the Council or any persons.

These items are deemed confidential to protect the privacy of the petition signatures.

REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Council Policy

Documents are available on Council's website -visit www.southgippsland.vic.gov.au.

Long Term Financial Strategies 2016/17

Proposed Rating Strategy 2018/19

Proposed Revised Council Plan 2017-2021

Proposed Annual Budget 2018/19

Legislative Provisions

Local Government Act 1989

3. MEETING CLOSED

NEXT MEETING
The next Ordinary Meeting of Council open to the public will be held on Wednesday, 29 May 2019 commencing at 2pm in the RSL, Leongatha.
The Council Meeting closed at 1.08pm.
Confirmed this 26 th day of June 2019.

Mayor, Councillor Don Hill